ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE COVMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS COWM TTEE
March 28, 2001
1:37 p.m
VEVMBERS PRESENT
Senat or John Torgerson, Chair
Senat or Al an Aust er nman

Senat or Randy Phillips
Senat or Ceor gi anna Li ncoln

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Pete Kelly
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 118

"An Act relating to a mandatory exenption from nunicipal taxes on

certain residences; and providing for an effective date."
MOVED HB 118 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 156
"An Act relating to rmunicipal debt for devel opnent
redevel opnent projects.”

MOVED HB 156 OUT OF COWM TTEE

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
HB 118 - No previous action
HB 156 - No previous action
W TNESS REG STER

Lori Backes

Al aska State Capitol, Room 41

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced HB 118

Steve Van Sant, State Assessor

Departnent of Community & Econom c Devel opnent

Di vision of Community and Busi ness Devel opnent
550 W7th Ave Ste 770

Anchor age, AK 99501-3510

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 118

and

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2001



Representative Lesil MQuire

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 156

Tom Kl i nkner

No address provi ded

Anchorage LI O

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 156

Fred Burrows

Downt own Anchorage Civil Venture

No address provi ded

Anchorage LI O

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 156

Rod Pfl ei ger

Downt own Part ner shi p

No address provi ded

Anchorage LI O

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 156

Anna Fai rcl ough

P.O Box 77112

Eagl e River, AK 99577

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 156
M ke Scott

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

1200 East 1° Avenue

Anchor age, AK 99504

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 156
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-11, SIDE A

Nunber 001

CHAI RVAN JOHN TORGERSON called the Senate Conmunity & Regional
Affairs Commttee neeting to order at 1:37 p.m Senators Austerman,
Phill'i ps, Lincoln and Chairnman Torgerson were present.

The first order of business was HB 118.

#HB 118

HB 118- SR CI T./ DI SABLED VET. PROP TAX EXEMPTI ON

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2001



Lori Backes, staff to Representative Wittaker introduced the bil
and explained that HB 118 allows nunicipalities to establish, by
their own ordinance, nethods for accepting applications for the
senior citizen, disabled veterans, and wi dows and w dowers property
tax exenption. Under current state law, these citizens nust file
yearly for this exenption and Representative Wittaker thought it
was best that communities establish their own procedures for
accepting these applications. For exanple, he thought it was unfair
that seniors had to apply yearly for the exenption when the general
residential property tax exenption could be made on a one tine
basi s.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked if he was correct that, at the | ocal option,
a senior citizen would have to file just once for a property tax
exenpti on.

MS5. BACKES said that is correct if that is the choice of the
muni ci pality.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked how the nunicipality would check to see
whet her the seniors had noved and their non-senior children were
now occupyi ng the house.

M5. BACKES said that would be addressed the sane way that
municipalities currently address that situation; the house would no
| onger qualify for the exenption

SENATOR PHI LLI PS t hought he was m ssing sone point; registering for
t he exenption just once could invite fraud.

M5. BACKES said that nmunicipalities could set their own nethods for
checking that the exenptions were allowable. One suggestion is that
a rem nder or question card could be sent on a yearly basis asking
whet her the individual still lives at the sane location. If the
card isn't sent back, that residence should be checked.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS t hought that people woul d cheat.

CHAl RMVAN TORGERSON asked Steve Van Sant to address Senator
Phillips' concerns.

STEVE VAN SANT, |ocal assessor for the Department of Comunity and
Econom c Devel opnent, responded that they have this problem now.
There is a small percentage of senior citizens throughout the state
who sign that they live at a particular residence when they really
don't live there. There is a safeguard that the local municipality
can put in whereby certain requirenents nust be net and the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2001



assessors expect that those procedures would be witten in so that
they would be able to check if there was a question. There is no
perfect solution, however.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked whether it would be mandatory to include
procedures for checking or not.

MR. VAN SANT said the bill says, ".shall by ordinance establish
procedures.” Wthin those procedures each municipality has
| atitude.

SENATOR PHILLIPS said this is non-mandatory.
MR. VAN SANT agr eed.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked whet her assessors generally support the
bill.

MR. VAN SANT said they do generally but the one concern they have
is on page 1, line 14 where "for that year"” is renoved. If an
i ndi vidual asks for an exenption to be retroactive for severa
years there would be no way for the assessor to go back and check
whet her they net criteria for the exenption.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked for confirmation that renoving "for that
year" m ght nmake this retroactive.

MR. VAN SANT said he believed it would. To this point, that
| anguage has been used to nmean that the governing body may only
wai ve an application late file for that year only. It cannot be
retroactive.

M5. BACKES responded that it hinges upon the word "may" in |line 13.
"The governing body of the municipality for good cause shown may
wai ve.." It would be a borough or nunicipal assenbly decision to
wai ve the application or not waive it. This allows the applicant
the opportunity to appeal the decision. Wthout the change in
| anguage, local nunicipalities can only address that type of
situation during that current application year.

SENATOR LI NCOLN spoke about a woman from Fai rbanks who was ill and
didn't realize that she had to request a waiver. The borough said
its hands were tied because they weren't allowed to waive that year
or prior years.

MS. BACKES was famliar with the case and said that she wasn't ill

but illiterate and didn't know that she had to file nore than once.
By the tinme the borough noticed the problem she was many years in

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2001



arrears and her property was forecl osed upon. The borough said that
state statute would not allow them to go back and |ook at
extenuating circunstances.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said that she would | eave the | anguage out due to
cases such as that. The l|ocal government should be able to nake
t hose deci sions.

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON asked if the noney being discussed was |oca
with no State treasury affect.

MR. VAN SANT said that was correct, the legislature "hasn't funded
this since 1996."

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON said he knew that, he just wanted it on the
record.

There were no ot her questions or individuals giving testinony.
He asked for the will of the committee.

SENATOR AUSTERMAN noved HB 118 and zero fiscal note fromcommttee
with individual recommendati ons. There were no objections.

#
#HB 156

HB 156- MUNI Cl PAL DEBT FOR DEVELOPMENT PROQIJECTS

REPRESENTATI VE LESIL MCGUI RE, bill sponsor, introduced the bill as
a straightforward neasure that would allow nmunicipalities to create
devel oprment and redevel opnent projects. An assenbly would identify
an area as blighted and qualified for either developnent or
redevel opnent. They would identify the boundaries and then issue
bonds for either devel opnent or redevel opnent purposes. As part of
t he bond i ssuance, a pledge woul d be nmade that nonies accrued from
the increased property value would then be used to pay down the
debt on the bonds.

This legislation was enacted in 1988 to give nunicipalities another
tool for comunity devel opnent and redevel opnent. Because there are
several lines in the original statute that create difficulties, it
is virtually dormant. She is unaware of any nmunicipality that has
used the funding tool.

Page 1, lines 9 and 10 of the amendnent renobves the additional
security required in the formof a letter. Bond underwiters are

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2001



al ready nmaking a financial analysis prior to underwiting bonds and
each bond project is viewed differently. The |anguage is redundant
and appears to require 100 percent collateralization. This has been
confusing and t herefore not used.

HB 156 renoves the redundant and confusing | anguage and streaniines
the process so nmunicipalities have the ability to use this as a
tool to aid devel opnent and redevel opnent in their municipality.

For the record, Tom Klinkner, a mnunicipal attorney with Birch
Horton and Bittner in Anchorage, is on line to answer questions. In
addi tion, Dan Sullivan, Anna Fairclough and M ke Scott were present
to answer questions and | end support.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked what triggered the bill

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE said that the Municipality of Anchorage was
the first group to bring this to her attention. They are interested
in a series of downtown Anchorage devel opnents and areas that
haven't attracted developers due to their blighted nature.
Muni cipalities have | ooked at this statute for a nunber of years
but it's proven difficult to use due to the confusing |anguage.

She wanted to rmake certain that the issue isn't politicized because
it is a redevel opnent tool and a |local control issue. It's not a
financi al burden that's being undertaken.

TOM KLI NKNER, an attorney with the Anchorage office of Birch Horton
and Bittner, said that statute 29.47.460 was enacted in 1988 to
provide a basis in State law for nunicipalities to i ssue bonds that
are exenpt from federal taxation. These are called qualified
redevel opnent bonds and federal |aw inposes requirenents for these
bonds to qualify for tax exenption. One requirenent is that there
must be State-enabling legislation and this statute was supposed to
supply that qualification

The | anguage that wll be deleted is not required by federal |aw
and is not necessary for tax exenption so it won't affect the
original purpose of the statute, it will nmake it nore flexible.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked how t he decision is nmade and woul d downt own
Chugi ak be as eligible as downtown Anchorage.

MR KLINKNER said that the local |egislative body nmust initiate the
process by identifying a blighted area.

CHAI RMAN TORCGERSON asked whether any area within a nunicipality is
eligible.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2001



MR. KLINKNER said it was.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE said that the neaning of rmunicipality is the
standard definition.

FRED BURROW representative of Downtown Anchorage G vic Ventures, a
new 501(C) 3 non-profit comunity devel opnent corporation funded by
the nunicipality and private sector to pronote community oriented
projects in underdeveloped or blighted areas, testified via
tel econference in support of the change. They feel that they are at
a conpetitive disadvantage without it.

ROD PFLEI CER, representative of the Anchorage Downt own Partnership
testified via tel econference that this anendnment woul d al |l ow Al aska
to be conpetitive with 48 other states that are using this tool.

ANNA FAI RCLOUGH, Anchor age assenbly menber, testified in support of
HB 156. The municipality would have an additional tool to help
pronote infrastructure developnent in the private sector. The
elimnated criteria is above and beyond normal requirenents.

M KE SCOTT, an enpl oyee for the Miunicipality of Anchorage and chair
of the legislative commttee for the Al aska Muinicipal League
testified in support of the legislation. He said it's a piece of
| egi sl ation that can apply anywhere in the State that has property
taxes. They were pleased to hear that the House passed the
| egislation on a 34 to O vote.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked about the letter in the bill packet witten
by M. Scott on a Municipal Light and Power (M&P) | etterhead.

MR, SCOIT said that downtown Anchorage is in the M.& service area
and so they have a great interest in seeing nore devel opnent in
this area so there is nore need for their service.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked whet her there was a down side for the State
of Al aska.

MR. SCOTT said he did not see any down side for the State but at

the I ocal |evel people should pay particular attention in deciding
whi ch projects to select for devel opnent or redevel opnent.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS noved HB 156 and zero fiscal note fromcomittee
with individual recommendati ons. There were no objections.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON adj ourned the nmeeting at 2: 00 p. m
#

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2001



